


OAG-FY17-R-0003  
Amendment A0003 – Questions and Answers 

(1) Section H.9.1 requires that “at least 35% of the dollar volume of the contract shall be
subcontracted to qualified small business enterprises (SBEs)” and that if there are insufficient
SBEs then “35% of the dollar volume” is to be subcontracted to CBEs.   In this context where the
contract is not for a specific dollar amount, what is meant by 35% of the dollar volume?  For
example, does it mean that (a) the subcontractor must perform at least 35% of the work on the
investigation/litigation; (b) the subcontractor must receive 35% of any recovery paid to outside
counsel regardless of the % of work they perform; or (c) something else?

The 35% speaks to the total dollar volume of the contract. OAG acknowledges that the dollar 
value of the contract is unknown at this time and due to the unique nature of this 
procurement, OAG recognizes the sub-contracting mandate as written is not possible.  Thus, 
OAG has initiated a full waiver of this requirement and anticipates approval by DSLBD within 
in the next 15 days.  However, engagement of our SBE/CBE community is an important mission 
to OAG to support District-based businesses and contribute to job creation and the city tax 
base which in turn results in a much stronger local economy.  We intend to meet this mission 
by revising the RFP requirements and evaluation factors to request all offers to provide a sub-
contracting plan that demonstrates best level of effort to engage SBEs and/or CBEs. The sub-
contracting plans will be scored during the evaluation process. The strongest plans will 
identify specific SBE and/or CBEs that the firm intends to engage, the services that those 
entities will provide, an estimate of the sub-contract amount and a timeline identifying the 
stage in the investigation and/or litigation that the services will be utilized. Examples of 
services for utilizing SBE/CBEs include, but are not limited to: copying, paralegal, litigation 
support, graphic production, document review, document hosting, etc. The sub-contracting 
plan of the winning proposal will be incorporated into the contract and will be enforced by 
DSLBD. 

OAG anticipates an amendment to the RFP addressing the changes as mentioned above by 
COB August 18, 2017 including an additional extension.  

(2) If it is the case that the subcontracting SBE is to perform 35% of the work, given the complex
and long-running nature of potential litigation which we anticipate will result in a great volume
of work to be performed in this matter and the small size of SBEs/small number of registered
SBEs with relevant skills/expertise, is there a process to seek a waiver or exception from the 35%
requirement during the course of contract performance if it becomes practically impossible for a
subcontracted SBE or SBEs to perform 35% of the work?

Yes, there is a waiver process.  OAG has deemed a waiver appropriate for this procurement 
and has initiated a waiver request. We anticipate that the waiver will be granted.  

(3) Please clarify whether subcontracting is mandatory for this solicitation.  Specifically, does
section B.4 require that we include a subcontractor in the proposal or does it only require that if
we use a subcontractor such subcontractor must meet the requirements in section H.9?



 
No, OAG has initiated a waiver for the sub-contracting mandate.  
 
Please also see answer to question 1. 
 

(4) Pursuant to H.9.1 of the RFP, must every Contractor subcontract with an SBE/CBE to qualify for 
the bid, or is this requirement only in effect in the event the Contractor decides to subcontract 
out a portion of the work? 

 
Please see answer to question 1. 
 

(5) Would an entity that has an application pending for SBE/CBE status with DSLBD at the time 
proposals are submitted qualify for purposes of satisfying the subcontracting requirements 
under RFP provision H.9.1? 
 
A pending application will not be accepted as an approved status as a SBE/CBE with DSLBD. In 
order to be considered a CBE, an offeror must be a CBE at the time of proposal submission.  
  

(6) Given the ethical prohibitions against fee-sharing with non-lawyers, is it the case that the only 
entities that can satisfy the SBE/CBE requirement under this contract are law firms/lawyers and 
that those SBE/CBE law firms/lawyers must receive 35% of the net contingent fee? 
 
No. OAG is not asking the Offerors to fee-share with lawyers or non-lawyers. OAG is 
requesting that Offerors include a sub-contracting plan that demonstrates best level of effort 
to include SBEs and/or CBEs. The sub-contracting requirement does not have to be met 
through sharing attorney’s fees (although that is one option); the requirement can be met 
through services other than legal services, including services that will be included in the costs 
of the litigation that the Offerors will cover during the course of the litigation.  
 

 


